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Report on the audit ol'the Financial Statements

Qualificd Opiniorr

I \\/e lrave aLrclited the accornpanl ing ['inancial staternents ol' Apc'x Entcrpriscs ([nrlia) L-irrritecl i"tlrr
(ionrpurrr"). 'ihich conrplisc tlrc Balaucc Shcct as at 3l March. 202,1 . [he Statenrent ol'l)ro1l1 anrl l-o:rs

(irrclLrcling Otlrcr Cclnrplehensive lncoure), the Statcnrenl ol'Changes in Equitt ancl thc Statenrcnt ol( ash

Irlou's fol tlre y'ear then ended, and rrotes to flnancial statenrents, inclLrding a sLnnnlar') ol'sisrrillcrrrt
accotrnting poIicies ancl other explanatory infbrnralion.

In orrr oPirrion arrrl to thc best r.rf oul inlbrnratiun atttl accortl ing to tlrc cx;rlartaliorrs gircn 1o Lrs erccpl lirr

tlrc cl-fccts ol-the rnaller desclibecl in the Basis fbr Qtralilicd Opinion scclitin ol-orrr'rcp()r'1. tlrc lilirlcsrrtl
llnancial statelnents give thc infbrnratiorr recltrirecl b1 the Cionrpanics Act.20l3 ('-tlrc Act") in tlrc nrannct

so lccluirccl and givc a lrue ancl fiir vierv in conltrrnritl'rvith lhe Incl ian Accounting Standarcls plcscliLreii

tunclel Section 133 of the Act reacl rvith tlre Conrpanies (lnclian Accor.rrrting Stanclartls) [{ulcs. ]015. rs

anrcnclcd and othcr accountins plinciples generally acceptecl in Inclia. of tlrc' sttrte oI al'firrrs o1'tlic

Llonrltan_r'as irt 3l N'Iarch.2024. its loss ancl othcl conrprelrensivc inctrrnc. chanlrcs in erlLr it_"- lrrtcl it. crtsl'i

l'ltrrvs 1br Lhc r'car then c'ncled.

ilasis lbr (Jurlilicrl Opinion

I i\t1cnliou is invitecl to Note no..1 to the linancial staternenls i,vith respect to the Cornlliln)'s irrr,cslnrcnt in

Lrnclr-rcrtcd cqrritv sharcs of Rs. 22.59.36.110: debentures ol'Rs. 5,529t oplionalll lirlll conlcrtiblc
clcbentules of ILs. lr+. 13.00.000: uon-cLlnrLr lative optionally'convertible prel'erence shalos o1'l{:.
.1.00.00.000t ancl ctrnrtr lativc rcdeenrable pref-erence slrares o1- I{s. ,1.6.1.00.000. lhe ('ornplrrr lrirs nol

obtaincrl luir r ulrration ol'thcsc irrr cstnrcnts as a1 i I N{arch. ]0l l ls lcqLrilccl lri ircl ,rS l 0t) "l irur,-il,i
Instruntcnts". In thc abscncc of tair rltltrlrtion rcpolt. \\( luc rrnable 10 c()nuncnl oir tlrc crrrrirrg iiilrtc,rl'
llre>e irrrcstnrents arrcl thc conseqrrenl inrpact thercol on tlrc Statenrcnt ol Prof it ancl [.oss.

\\ie condLrctecl otir aLrdit ol the llnancial stalcnrcuts in accorclance rr itlr tlrc Stanclaruls on Atrcl iting (S,,ts,y

spe ciliccl rrnclcr section 143( l0) o[' the Act. C)Lrr re:;ponsibilities rrncler those Stanclarcls are lirrLircr'

clcsclibed in the Atrditor's llesl.ronsibilitics lirr thc Audit of tlrc Financial Slatcnrcnls scetion ol'our rcpolt

\\/c ale inclcpenclent ol- the C'onrprtny irt aocordancc tt iLh llre C.oclc ol' Irlhies isstrcd [rr lirc Institrrte Lrl'

('lralte lccl AccoLrntants of Inclia ("lCAI") togcther rr ith the ctlrical lcquir.cnrcrrls tlurl itre lclcr lLtrl 1() ()rr'

aLrrlit ol'the financial statemc'nts undcr thc rclevaut provisions ol'thc Act ancl RLr lcs thereLrnder'. arrci rri.r

have lLrllllled our other ethical responsibilities in accorclarrce u'ith tlrese leclLr ircnrents ancl the ICAI-s

Cocle of Bthics. We believe that the aLrdit cvidence \\'e hale obtained is sLrl'llcient ancl npplolrlilrlc lii

;rlovide a basis for or-rr opinion on the flnaucial statenrents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Membet's of Apex Enterprises (lndia) Linrited

Report on the Financial Statenrents fbr the period ended 3l March,2024

Bnrphasis of Matter

3. We clraw yor-rr attentiop to the Note no. 39 to the f-inancial statenrents regarding dilLrtion ol'finaltcial assets

in view of surrepde1of Norr-Banking Financial Cornpany (NBFC) Certificate of lLegistration for negative

rret or.vred furd. As nrentioned in the notes, the Cornpany is in tlre process o1'exploring the scope lirl'

diversificatiop arrd is hopeful for the positn,c oLrtcolre in the near firtr-rre for the dilLrtion of the t-irlancial

assets.

OLu opiniort is not rrodifled in respect o1'the above tnatter'

Materi:rl Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

4. We clrarv attention to Note no. 38 to the llnancial staterrents, r,vliich states tltat the net lvor1h ol thc:

Corrpany is negative due to losses and the Con-rpany's cln'rent liabilities erceed its curretrt assets as at 3l

Mar.ch,202zl.'fhese events or concJitions alorrg r,r,ith other lnalters as sct lbl'1h in tllc afolesaicl tlo1e"

i'dicate that tlere is a rrater.ial ultcertaintl, r.vhich casts significant clotrbl aboLtt thc C)otllpallv's abilitl ttr

cortinue as a'Coins Concern'in foreseealrle futLrre. Horvcver. having regarcl to the f-inarrcial sr'tppclrt

lr.ont t6e llapageuteut arrd future plan for restrr:ctttrittg ancl/or tllerger, the Cotrpatry has consiclerccl it

appropriate [o prepare the financial statetrents oll a Going Concern Basis'

Our opiniort is not nlodified itl respect cll'the above tratters'

I(ey Audit Mattcrs

5. I(ey aldir ntatters are those ntatters that, in oLrr professional -iudgrlellt, lvere of nlost significarlcc ilt 0ttt

arclit of the flnancial statenrents of the current period. These utatters were adciressecl irr the colltexl ol-otri'

auclit of the fluancial statemeuts as a'nvhole, and in forrring our opinion tltereon. attcl we do not provicle a

scpalate opirtion ott these lllatters.

l, adclition to the nratters describecl in tlre Basis tbr QLralified Opinion sce liotr. tvc har e

clctcr.nrined the nrattcrs describecl belolr to bc the key aLrdit nrlitters to bc corrtntrrlicatecl irt Otrl

Report:

Horv our rrudit:rddresscd the Key Audit
Mltttcrs

l

Virlurrtion of Quoted lin:rnciitl lssets held at

I'ail r,:rluc (Notc No. a(i) us pcr thc Finnlcial

Statcrnent)
1o. thc

Quoted Financial Assets are itlvestnlerlt in quoted

eqLritf instrutments of other entities that have been

classilred as f'air valued throLrgh profit/loss
('lrV'lPI-') basecl on the Conrpattl,'s busirress

nroctcl ol-nrattaging the financial assets and the

contlaotLral cas[t f'lolvs characteristics of the

Principal Autlit l'rocctl urcs:

Our aLrdit inclucled. bltt rltts tltll
fol lou ittg prt,cedttres:

. L-,r,alLrzrtod thc accortlltirlg policr"acbptccl ["'r Ihc

Cionrpanl f'or its applopriitLettcss itl accot'clitttcc

rr ith app I icablc ltccoLrtt Lit r g s1lrt tclat'cls. i llcItrtl ing

Ind AS 109.

Kcy Audit Nlatters
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f-rnarrcial zrssets itl accordatlce lvith Illd AS 109

"Finattcial Ittstrtttlletrts". Further' the Compalll

has desigrtated ittvestnletlts in Inlttttal 1'urlds and

for the purpose ol'deternlining fair value of the

sanre, the share price,4"lAV as at year-end of such

investmcttts has beetl considered by the

nranagetletlt.
lnvesttnents in qLroted eqtrity itrstrr"ttnetlts u'as

considcred to bc one of the areas rvhich reqtrired

signif rcarrt auclilor attentiotl atld r'vas ottc olthe

nratters of tttost sigrrilicance in the flnancial

statenrents cotlsiderirlg the rrateriality of total

value of ittvesttlletlts to the f-inatlcial statentents,

aud heuce has been identified as a key audit

matter for the ctlrrellt year's atldit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To thc Membet's of Apex E,rrterprises (lrrdia) Lirrited

Report otr the Financial Statenrents for the period ended 3 I March' 2024

. lnspcctc'cl soLlrce doctttlletlts st"tch as Slirtetrlctlt

ol'holclings fiorn clcpository hcld in thc narnc ol'

the Cornpatty. to confirnt existetrce atld

rights of the Conlpatly to sr'tclt itlt'es[tlrent balancc

as disclosecl to bc otrtstancling as at 3 lMarch'

2024.

. Iror investtletlt irt listecl entities. periortred

inclependertt price chccli 1l-ottl relelartt stocli

crclrange Lrsecl b1 Cotllparll's lllallagclllcrrt to lLrir'

value their illvestnretlts recogttisecl at FV'['P[' as

per lnd AS 109 "Financial ltlstrLttllents"'

lnlbrmation other than the Financial Statements and Autlitor's lLcport Thet'con

6. The Company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informatiotr. 
-l'he other inlbrrnatiotr

corrpr.ises the iulbrrration inclLrcled in the Board's Report inclLrcl ing Atttlexr'tres to Board's Report' btrt

docs not i,clude the t"inaucial statemcnts ancl ottr ttttclitot''s repott thereot't.

L)ur opi.i., o, the linancial statenrents does not cover the other intbrnrirtiotl atrd rt'e do llot expl'css alr)

lblrn of assLlralrce corlcIrrsioll thereotl'

I. couuection rvith our aLrdit of the financial statenrents, oLlr responsibility is to read the otlrer itltbrtltatiotr

ard, in doirrg so. cor-,sidcr rrhether thc other inforrration is rnatcrially incotlsisterlt ivith the fitlarrcial

stateurerts or our kuorvledge obtairecl ciuring the course of otrr aucl it or otlterrr ise appears to be tltateriall-t

tur isstirted.

lf-. basccl o, the rvorh lve have perfbnrecl, we conclucle that there is a material ttlisstatetlletlt o1'this othcr'

inl-o11atio1; we are required to repofi that fact' We have nothing to report irl this regard'

Responsibility of Manngcmcnt :rnd Those charged lvith Governance Ibr thc Financial Stltcmcnts

7 ,l.he courp^ry's BoarcJ of Directors is responsible for thc nratters statccl in secticlrt 134(5)ol-1he Act $ith

rcspect to tlre preparation of these finaucial statelnents that give a true artd lhir vierv of thc llrlarrcial

positior. linaroial perfornrance and other comprehensive itrcot.tre, chattges in eclirity ancl cash lloi\s ol'the

Courpany i. accordapce u,ith the accor,rnting principles generally accepted in lrldia. incltrding thc Indiarr

Accourti,,g Starclarcls specifiecl under Section 133 of the Act, reacl with tlte relevattt rules issued there

u nder.
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INDEPENDI,]NT ATTDIT ORS, REPOR'I
't'o tlre N4ctnbet's of Apex Etrterprises (lndia) Lirnited

Repor.t on the Irinancial Statenrents for the period ended 3l N4arch' 2024

-l'his responsibility also inclr,rcles rlainteuance.of adeqLrate trccot-ttltil.tg records irl accordarlce r'lith the

provisiors ol.the Act 1or safeguarding the assets of the corrpany and for preventittg ancl detecting l'raLicls

arcl other. irregLrlaritiesl selection ancl application of appropriate accounting policies; maliirlg.itrdgrllerlts

ard estirnates thal are reasopable and prudentt and clesigrr. inrplenrcntiilion attd ttrttitltetlittlce o1'acleclttate

internarl flnancial controls, that rvere operating ef1-ectively 1br eltsr-rring the accr-rracy ancl oonlpletetless o1

t5e accountirg recorcls, relevant to the preparation ancl prcsenlation of'the flrtancial statemettts that gir'e a

trLre nrd fair view and are fi'ee frotr nraterial rnisstatetnetrt, whether clr-te to ft-atld or error'

l, preparine the lrnancial statements, urauagenrent is responsible for assessittg the company's abilitl'ttr

co.tirue as a goirg concern, disclosing, as applicable, rratter-s relatecl to goirtg colloertl atrtl ttsirlll thcr

goirg corcerr-r basis of accounting unless the Managenrent either irltcnds to liclLridtrte lhe C'otlrpall) ()r l()

cease operatir..ltrs, ot'has tlo realistic alternative br"rt to do so'

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Companl"s financitil reptrt'litlg pr(reess'

Autlitor,s llcsponsibilities for thc Auclit of the Financial St:rtenrents

oLrr.objc.ctil,cs are to obtaiu reasonable assLrrance irbout r.r'hcthel the flnancial statcnlcttis rls a rrlttrlc a|c

ll.ec fl.our nraterial ruisstatcltent, u,hether due to fl-aud or error, arrcl to isstte att artditor's reporl tltlrt

irclLrdes oLrr opinion. Reasonable assLrauce is a high level of assLlrallce, bttt is not a gLlaralltcr(] thitl ritr

aLrclit corcl,cted i, accordance u,ith Standards on ALrditing (SAs) lvill alrval's detect a tIalct'ial

r..isstatenrert *,hen it erists. l\lisstatenrents can arrse lrom fraucl or error and are considerecl mtrterial ii'

indiYidLralh,or in the aggresate. thel cotr lcl reasonably be ex;lectecl to influetlce the ecotlotnic clecisiotrs i'1'

Lrsers talictr ott the basis ol-thcse lillarlcial statelrellts

As part ol.au audit in accordauce rvith Stanclards on Auditing (SAs), rvc erercise prol'essiontil.itrclgrrctlt

ancl ntainttrin p|ofessional skepticisrn througltotrt the aLrdit. We also:

. lclentit_r and assess the risks of rraterial misstaternent of the financial statetlellts, whether cltte tc'

traLrcl or error. dcsign and perforrl audit proceclttres responsive to those risks. atld obtain iltrrl it

er iclerce that is sulllciept aucl applopriate kr provicle a basis tbt' tltrr ollirritlrl lilr: r'isl' 0l'tlol

cletectirg a prtrLer-ial nrisstatement resr-rlting fiorn fiaLrcl is higher tlian fitr ollc tesLtltittg lltrtrr

erroi.. as fi-aucl ,rat ilro5e collusion, fblgerv. intentional on.tissions, tttist'ept'cseltlatiotrs. tlr thc

overt'icle of irltet'rlal corltrol'

. Obtail a1 ylclerstapdilg ol ilternal control relclattt to the aLrdil in ot'dcr to design aLrclit

proceclures that are appropriate in the circLrrrslances. Urtcler Scctitltl l4l(3)( i)ol-th'.: /\e t. rrc rttc

als. respglsible lbr erpressing or-rr o1;iuion rln rr'hctltet'the L'orllpatrl lras ar-let;tlillc iitlct'tllri

fin.ncial corrtrol rvith reference to financial statenrents in place alrcl tl,e opct-atillg cl'tectircrlc:'r'

ol'sttclt cotttt'ois.

. Er,aluate the appropriateness of accounting policies r.rsed and the t'easottabletless of accot-ttltitig

estirlates and related disclosures rllade by lnallagellle llt.

8
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INDEPENDEN 1' AUDITOIIS' REPOIIT
'['o the Metlbers olApex Ertterprises (lndia) Linritecl

lLepolt on the [riuancial Slatetrretlts for the period enclecl 3l March- 2024

. Corclucle op the appropriateness of uranagenrer.rt's Lrse of tlie going colrcerlt basis of accotttrtitlg

and. based on the audit evidelce obtained, lvhether a traterial ut'toertainty exists relateil t'tl

cve,ts or conditio,s that u-l&)i s351 significant cloLrbt on the Conrpanl"s ability to cotltirlr'te as a

going concern. lf we conclude that a rnaterial r-rncertaittty cxists. \'ve are reqtrired to clrau

attertion irr c*rr tlrclitor's report 1o the relalecl disclosures in the f-inancial stzltelllellts tir'. il'strch

disclosures are ipadeqr-late, to moclify our opinion. OLrl cctttclttsic'rtls are based ott the auclil

evicle,ce obtained r-rp to the date of our auditor''s reporl. IIor'vever. fittr'rre events ot' ctltrditiorrs

,ra),caLrse the Conrpany to cease to contrnrre as a goiltg cottcerll as c'lisclosed in paragraph:l tlt'

ottt'RcPort.

. Evaluate the overall presentatiou, strllctLrre and contenl olthe flnancial statenrents' inclLrclillg the

cl iscl.sLrr.es. ancl whether the financial statcrncnts rcpt'esent thc Lrncierlf illg llallsacliolrs illl(l

evetlts itl a ttlatltler that achieves lail pl'eserltattt'lll'

we cor-rr.ruricate 
'vith 

those chargecl rvith govenrzurce regarcling. anloug other ntattet's. the plarrrlecl scol,e

and ti,ing of the ar-rdit and significant aLrclit findings, incluclirrg arrv signilicarrt cleficietlcies itl illtcrrrni

contt'ol that rve iclentify dLrring oLlr ar-rdit.

We also provide tlrose char-ged rvith go\ientance rvith a staternettt that ue har'e cornplicd with l'clcritttt

e:tlricrrl recluir.errents regarding inclependence. arrd to ct'rn.rnrrLnicate rvith therr all relationsllills atlcl tltilcr

rr.,u11crs tlrat iray ieasouably be thoLrght to bear on oLlr inclependence. ancl rvhere allplicable. relatcci

sa f'egt ralds.

lleport on Other Legal and llegulatory Requirements

9. As reqLrirecl by,the Conrparries (ALrditor's Reporl) Orcler.2020 ("the order")- isstrecl b} th': ('(rrrtrrrl

Cor,,e.rurert o1'Inclia in ter-nrs of sLrb-section (ll) of secticln 14i olthc'cotrPttrties Ac1.20l l- riu gir': irt

'thc Arlexur.e-A. a stateureut on the ntatters specilied in paraglaphs 3 artd 4 ol-the Order' to thc cxtcrrt

applicable.

l0.As reqLrir-ed by Secti,:rn 143(3) of the Act, rve reportthat:

(a) We have sought ancl obtainecl. except 1br the rralter described irr thc "Basis fbr QLraliirecl Opirriorr'-

secti.,. all t5e infbrrratiou alrcl explanations rvltich to the best of or-tt' l\no\\lcdge arld bclicl $c|e

llccessar)i for the pLlrposes of oLtt' attclit'

(b) 6xcept fbrthe effects/possible effects of the matter clescribed in the ''Basis fbr Qtralifiecl O1';inittrr"

secliop, ip our opinion. proper boohs of accoLult as recluit'ed by law lrave beett l<opt bt' ihe

Conrpany so far as it appears from our exanrination ofthose books

(c) L,xoept for the rlzrtter clescribecl in the "Basis lor QLralifiecl Opinion" secliorl. the lJalarrer Shccl'

thc Statentcnt ol. proflt and l-oss (inclLrdirrg othel complcherrsive inconre), tlte Slal'etrrcrrI o1'

Changes ill EqLrity and the Staternent of Cash [rlor,vs dealt rvith by this l(eport are irr agrc'etllcttt'

lvith the boolis of accotlllt.

,{
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INDEPENDENT' AUDITORS' REPORT
'l'o the Members of Apex Enterprises (lndia) Limited

Repor1 on the Financial Statentents for the period ended 3 I March. 2024

(d) l. oLrr opinion, except for the effects/possible etl-ects of thc nlatter clescribed irr the "[]asis fbr'

eLralilted Opinion" section, the aforesaicl financial statelnertts cornply u'ith the Irldian Accolrrltitlg

Sta,dtrrcls prescribed under section I33 of the Act read rvith the relevant rules isstted there r'rtlclet':

(e) Our observations or comnreuts describecl in the ''Basis for Qualified Opinion" section do not ha\e

any adverse eflect on the ftrrlctiotring of the Conrparly':

(D O, (he basis olthe r.vrilten representations leceir''ed liorr the directors as otr 3l March 202-1 talierr

orr recor.cl by the Boarcl of Directors. none o1- the r.lirectors is disqr-ralitled as otl 3I Ma|ch. l0l'+

fi.om being appointed as a clirector in tertl.ls of Section 161(2) of the Act.

(g) The qLralificatiou relating to the r.naintenance o1'accoLrnts and other uratters cotltlected the|crvith

are as statecl in tlte "Basis for Qualified Opinion" sectiotl;

(h) With respect to the aclequracy of the interrral l'lnancial cotrtrols over fltratlcial reporlirrg of the

Cornpany and the opcrating elfectiveness of such contt'ols. ref-er to oLlr separate l(ePort irr

Annerure -B r,vherein we have expressed a clLlalificd opitritrtl.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be inclLrded in the ALrclitor's Rcporl itr accordauce r'rith l{Lrlc

ll of the Companies (Audit and ALrdito|s) tlules, 2014, irr our opiniotr attd to the best o{- ottt'

inlbrmation and according to the erplanations givett to t-ts:

i. l'he Coltltarty cloes pot have anv pendinlt litigations rvlticlt tllav htrvc anl irltllact oll its

tlnancial position in its firlancial statetlletrts'

ii. T5e Conrpany does lot haye ap)i long-terrn contracts inclLrcling derivative cotltt'acts lirr uhicll

there were ilt.tl' ,,',rt","ul foreseeable losses; attd

iii. Ther-e were uo a;uour.rts which rvere required to be tlartst-erred to the Itlvestor Educatiotl attci

Protectiotl Ftrrld b1 the Corrpany'

ir. (a) lhc ,tanagerrent lias lepresetrted to rrs thltt. to the best of its ktlort'lcclge arlcl bcliel. tlo lLrrltls

harc beeu aclr,apcecl ol loaled or investecl (eithcr ft'ont borrolled firncls or share prelllitttlr tlt'

apy otlier soLl;ces or kipd of fLrncls) by the Corttpartl to ot' irt atll other pcrsorl(s) or

entitl,(ies), ilclLrding fbreign entities ("lnternrediaries''), u'ith the undcrstanditrg. rvlrethcr

recorded iu uritipg or otherwise, that the Intermediarl'shall. u'hetlter. directly ot'inclirectll'

lencl to or invest in other pel'sonS or entities identifled itl atlr lllitllllel'trhalstlercr b\ tlr otl

behall o1. the Cornpan.v ("Ultinrate Be netlciaIies") or proYicle anl guararltee' secLtriti or llrc

lilie on behalf of the Ultirrate Beneficialies (Relcr note -l I (r iXA)) o1' the l'inarrcial

statelrellts '

(b) The rranagemept has also represented to us, to the best of its litror'r'ledge and beliel', that trtr

f,rnds have beeu received by the Company'frotn arry persorr(s) or entity(ies)' inclLrding:,

lbreign entities (.,FLrnding Parties"), uith the Lnderstancling. r,r'hether t'ecorcleci itl trt'ilitlg or

otherwise. that the Company shall, r.l,hcthcr. dircctly or inclircctll', lend to ot'irrvest in otircr

persors or eptities identified in any manuer r'vhatsoever by or oll behall'o1-the FLrrldilrg Parly

I
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(,,Ultimate Beneficialies") ol provide an1, gLtaratttee, secLtritY ol the lilie orl behall'of.thc

LJltirnate Beleficiaries (Reltr note 4l(vi)(B)) of the flnarrcial slalerlerrts.

Based op suc5 audit procedures perfonned as considered reasorlable and appropliate irl thc

circLrrrstances, nothing has corne to our notice lhat has caused us to believe that the lllatlagellrelll

representatior.rs 1rpcler snb-clauses (i) and (ii) of RLrle (e) as provided r-rnder (a) and (b) above'

cotttai t.t atlY tllaterial ll isstatetnetlt.

\,. l'5e Botrrcj of Directors of the Corrpany havc not proposecl / paid arrl dir'iderrd tbr the rear etlcletl

3l March,2024, hence, no compliance olsectiou 123 ol'the Act rvtls rlecessar)i.

'i. Basecj ou oLrr exarnination, which included lest checks, the Company has used accountitlg

soft',r,ar-e for.gaintailing its books of acsount for the finarlcial yetrr 3l March, 2024 rvhich has a

featurc of recording aLrdit trail (edit log) tacility rincl the sante has been operated tlrror-rghorrt the

1,ear fbr alltransactions r.ecorclecl in the softn'are's. FLrrther. during the coLrrse of ottr atrdil rrc clici

t.rot ct.r'ue i.lcross an1 instance of the aLrdit trail t'eatLrrc beirlg tarlrpe[cc] ri'ith.

As proviso to RLrle 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules.20l4 is applicable frorn April 1'

2023. reporling ulder RLrle 1l(g) of the Conrpanies (Atrdit and Aurditors) RLrles' 2014 on

preservatiol of aLrdit trail as per the statntory requiretrents fbr recorcl retentiotl is not applicabie

tbr the f'irrancial year ended 3 I March, 2024'

ll with respect to the rratter to be inclLrdecl in the Ar-rclitor's Reporl irr nccorclallce uith tlte |ec1Lr it'ertlcttl-s o1'

Section I 97( I 6) of the Act:
L our opiuiol apd according to the infornration ancl explattation given to trs, the retlltrtleration paicl b) tlrc

Co,rpa,iy to its clirectors clLirirrg the current year is in aocorclallce lvith the provisions of Section lc)7( l6)

o{' the Conrpanics Act. 20 I 3.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Referred to in paragraph I Lrnder 'Reporl on Other
report to the nrenrbers of Apex E,nterprises (lndia)
March, 2024.

Legal and RegLrlatory Recluiren-rents' section of ottr
Ltd. ou the Irinancial statc'n.rcnts 1br the ycar endecl 3 1

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a) (A) -fhe Conrpany ltas rnaintained proper recolds shorving

details and sitr"ration of Property, Plant & Equiprrent.
fLrll particLrlars, includiug clLrantitatir'c

(B) The Company does not have intangible assets as at 3 I March, 2024. Therefbre, the pror isiorrs

of Clause 3(i)(aXB) of the Order are trot applicable to thc Company.

Accordin-q to the infbnration and explanatious given to Lrs and on tltc basis o1'oLtr exarrrinatiorl

of the records of the Conrpany, the Property, Plant and EclLripurent of the Contpany ltave beell

physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no ntaterial disclepertcies

have been noticed on such verification.

Accorcliltg to the inforrration aud explauations -rliven to us and on the basis of our examittatiotr

o['the recorc]s of the Corrpany. the Conrpanl' cloes not hold anf inrtt'tovablc ploperties as a1 I I

March. 2024. Therefore, the provisions of ClaLrse 3(i)(c) of the Ordet'are not applicablc to tlre

Con'rpany.

The Cornpany has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipurent during the year.'1-he Conrptttrl'

does not hold any intangible assets as at 3l Marclt,2024. Therefore, the provisions of ClaLrsc

3(ixd) of the Ordel are not applicable to the Conrpanl'.

Acoordingto the infbnnation ancl explanations given to Lls, llo proceeclings havc bcen irtitiatcd olt

or are pendiltg against the Conipany fbr holding benami property ttnder the Prohibition of

Benanri Properly Transactions Act, I 988 (as amended in 201 6) (forrrerll, 16. Betranri

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, lgBB (45 of lgBB)) and Rules nrade thereLtnder, and thcrcfore the

qLrestion of our cortrnrenting on rvhether the Contparty has appropriately disclosed the details in

its financial statenrents does nclt arise.

As at 3l N,larch.2024 the Company does not have any'physical irtvelttories.'lhclelbrc. thc

provisions of ClaLrse 3(ii)(a) of the Order are ttot applicable to the Company.

Accorcling to the inforntation and explanations given to us and on tlte basis of otrr exatttiltatiott ol'

the recorcls of the Contpany, the Company has not been sauctioned altl'*'orking capital limits in

excess of five crore rllpees in aggregate fi'onr banlis ancl f-lnancial institLrtiotts on the basis o1'

security of current assets at any point of tinre of the vear'.'l'herefbt'c. thc protisitttts ol'('lattsc

i(iiXb) of the Order are not applicable to the Cornparry.

According to the inforrration and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exallinatiort o1'

the records of the Corrparry dLrring the year, tlre Company has not provided any guaratllee or

securitv or granted any loans or advances in the natLrre of loatts, secttred or ttttsecLtred. to

cornpanies, firms, limited liability partnership or anv other palties dLrring the vear.'['hc C'otllpitrr,r'

Iras ntacle investrlent in other partiss cluring thc y,ear. Iut'tltct'. thc ('tttttpattt llils tttlt tttrttlc

irtvestment in contpanies, lrrrrs trncl limited liability partncrship. Iherclirrc. tlte ptoi'isiotts ol

ClaLrse 3(iii){a,o,d,e,f} of the Order are not applicable to tlre Cornpany.

(a)

(b)
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Annexure A to Inde pendent Auditor's Report
Ref'erled to in paragraph I r-rnder'Reporton Other Legal ancl Regulatorl, Rcqr-r irentents'section of oLtr
rcport to the rreurbers of Apex Enterprises (lndia) Ltd. on the Irinancial stateurents fbr the ),ear ended -l l

March. 2024.

(b) Accorcling to the infornration and explanations given tcl trs and basecl on the aLrclit proi-:cclrrrcs

conducted by r-rs, in oitt'opinion, the invcsttrents nradc dLrring the year b1 the Corn;ranl'ar-c.
prirra facie, not prejLrdicial to the intclest of the Compan1,.

(a)\/ll

lY.

VI

tx.

According to the information and explanation given to us and basecl on the ar-rclit proceclLrre:;

conductecl by us, the Company has neither grauted any loans. nor provided guarantees or'

securities which require compliauce rvith the provisions of Section 185 of the Act. In respect of
the loans and investnrents nrade by the Company. the prorisions ol Section 186 of the Act lralcr

been complied rvith.

The Cornpany has not accepted any cleposits or ar.r.rour.rts lr,hich are deemed to be deposits r.r,ithin

the nreaning of Sections 13 to 76 or any provisions ol'the Act and the l{Lrles liarred there under to

the extcnt notified. Therefore, the provisions of claLrse(v) is not applicable to the Conrpani,.

The Central Govenurent has not prescribed the rraintenance of cost records uncler sub-section (l)
of Section l4B of thc Act fbr thc busincss actir,'ities carriecl oLrt b1 the Cionpany. 'l'hc'relbr-c. tlrc

provisions oI ClaLrse 3(vi) olthe Order are not applicable to the Conrpanl,.

According to the infbrrration and explanations given to us ancl on the basis of oul exanrination ol'

the records of the Company, the Conrpany is geuerally regLrlal in depositing the LrndispLrlccl

statutory dLres inclLrding Coods and Services J'ax, Provident firnd, Enrplol,ee's state insurance,

lncome tax, Sales-l'ax, Service Tax, DLrty of custours. DLrty of L,xcise. Value added l-arcs. ccss

and other statLltor)'dues, as applicable, to the appropliate aLrthorities.'l'herc \\ere n() rrrtclispLrtecl

anroLrrts payable in respect of the afbresaid stzrtLrtory clLrcs in allcars as at 3l Malclr, 201.1 tirr a

pcriod olnrole than six nronths fiom the date they becarne pa_vable.

Accolding to the inforrnation and explauations given to Lrs and on tlre basis of otrr exaurination ol-

thc lecords of the Com1tan1,, tltere are Ito dues irr tespect of statLrtory dr:es ref'erred to in (a) above,

ri Ir ich have not been deposited on accoLurt of any d ispLrte.

According to the infonlation and explanations given to r-rs zrncl on tlre basis of oLrl exanrintrtion ol'

tlie records of the Conipan),, there were no transactions relating to prcviorrslv unrecordecl inconic

tlrat rvere surreudered or disclosed as income in the tax assessrrents Lrnder the lnconre Iax Act.

1 961 , (43 of I 961 ) dLrring the year.

(a) According to the inforrration and explanations given to us ancl on the basis of orrr cranrinrtliorr

of the records of the Cornpany, the Company has not clcfaLrltcd irr repaYnrent r:['loans or otlrer'

borlowings or iu the payurent of interest thereon to any lender dLrling llre y,ear.

(b) According to the inforrnation and explanations given to us and on the basis o1'oLrr exarrinatiorl

of the records of the Conrpany, the Company has not been declared a lviltirl defirLrlter hy an1

banli or financial institution or govenrrlent or governnrent authority.

ln our opiuion zrnd according to the inI'brnralion ancl explanations giveu to us. tlte ('ontprtrrr

has not raised any nroney by u,ay' of terrr loans clLrring the year and cJicl not have auv telln

loans outstanding at the beginning of the curlent year. Therel'ore. the provisions of'CIausc

3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Corlpany.

(b)



Anncxure A to Intlependent Auclitor's Report
l{c1'er.red to in paragraph I under'lLcport on Other'[-egal ancl Regtr latorl [{ecyuiretnetlts' sectiotl o1'ottt'

report to the member.s of Apex Enterprises (lndia) Ltd on the lrinancial statenrents lttr the lear enclecl 3 i

March, 2024.

(d) According to the inforrration and explanations given to trs atld on the basis olexaminatiotl oi

records of the Corrpany, the Contpany has r.tot raisccl any titttcls on sllort-temr basis. Theleible.

the provisions of Clause 3(ixXcl) of the Oldel are not applicable to the Company'.

(e) D,ring the year ended 31 March, 2024,the Contpany dicl not have alry strbsidiaries, assooiatcs

or joint ventlrres as defined under the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clatrse 3(ixXe) of thc

Order is not applicable to the Corrpany'

(f) Duringtheyearended3lMalch,2024,theCompany'clicinothaYcatry'sirbsicliaries'associaLcs
or joint veptuLes as definecl Lrnder the Act. l'herelbre. tlre plovisions of CllaLrse 3(ix)(f) ol'thc

Order is not applicable to the Company'

x. (a) Tlie Company has not raised moneys by way of initial pLrblic ofl'er or firrther pLrblic offbr

(including clebt instruments) during tlie year. 
-l'herefore, the provisiotrs of Clause 3(x)(a) o1'the

Order are not applicable to the Cotrpany'

(b) ['he Corrpany has not nrade any preferential allotrnent ot'private placcnletlt o['shat'cs or lirlll

or partially or optionally conveftible debentures clLrring the year. l'hercfbre, the plorisiorts ol'

Clause3(xXb)oftheorderaretlotapplicabletotheCornpany.

ri. (a) Accor.dipg to the infbnration ancl erplanations given to its ancl on the basis of ottr eratr.titratiotr

o['the records ol'the Conrpany carried out in accorclance lvith the generalll acccptccl aLrcl itirl3r

pr.actices i1 [1c]ia. rve haye neither conre aoross any tttstatlce of fiaLrcl b1'thc Cotltpatll or otl

the Clorrpaur. poticed or. reported during thc y'ear. nor have u'e been ittfcrrtrecl of ally sttch casc

by the IVlatlagenretlt.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us atld ott tlte basis olour exanlitlatii'rtt

of the records of the Company carried out in aocoldance lvith the gerleralll'accepted aLrclitirrtr

practices i, lnclia, a repofi uncler Section 143(12) o1'the Act, itr Fortn AD'l'-4. as llrescribetl

Lrncler Rule l3 of Companies (ALrclit and ALrditors) l{Lrles, 2014 u.zrs rrr.)t t'eclLtit'ecl to be lllecl

rvith the Centr.al Goyerplter.rt, cluring the year and upto the date o1'this report.'lherefbre' thc

provisiols of ClaLrse 3(xi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Corrpattl'.

(c) Accorcling to the inforrration and explanations givert to Lts, there \Yere lro r'vhistle blower

conlplaitrts received dLrring the yeal by the Cotrpatry'

xii. As rhe 1)ompany is not a Nidhi Company and the Niclhi [{Lrles, 2014 arc not alrplicablc to it. Lhe

provisiops of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Cornpany'

ln our opinion ancl accorcling to the inforniation ancl explanations giverl 1o us, the tl'rlllsiteli\)ll\

rvith relatecl parlies are in compliance with Sections I77 and 188 olthe Act, rvhere applicable' and

the details of the related party transactions havc been clisclosed in thc tlotes to the llrllrrrcial

staten.eltts as requilecl by the appliczrble accoLttrtitlg statrclarcls'



(a)

(b)
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Annexure A to lntlependent Auditor's Report
l{e1'elrecl to iu palagraph I Lrnder'Report on Other l.egal ancl RegLr lator'1,l{ccpr irenrents'scction of oLrl

report to thc'nrenrbers of Apex E,nterprises (lnc1 ia) l-tcl. on thc []inarrciitl statcn'rcn1s fbr the yciu'cn11ci1 -i I

March. 202,1.

In our opinion and according to the infbrmation and oxplanation giverr to us, the Conrpanl

has an inlenral audit system lvhich coulmersLrralc with thc size and natule of its business.

1-he repolts of the lnternal ALrclitor fbr the per-iod under atrdit hare becn consiclelecl b1 rrs

In or-rr opinion and according to tlre inlormation and explanaliotts givc'n to Lts, the Contpalrr hlLs

not entered into any r.ton-cash transactions rvith its Directors or persons connected vlith thettt.

Thelefore, reporling ou compliance rvith the provisions o1'Section 192 of,tlre Act Ltttcler Clatlsc:

3(rv) o1-the Order are not applicable to the Conrpany.

\\i I. (a) The Contpany is not requirecl to be registered rrnder Section 45-lA ol'the llcset't,c [Janl' ol'

lndia Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of ClaLrsc 3(xvi)(a) o1-the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(b) According to the inforrnation and explanations given to Lrs, as indicated in thc Note no. .19 to

the lrnancial staternents, the Company has surrendered its NIIFC Certificatc in the vcar 200(>

and is in the process for explorin-9 the scope lbl divelsilrcatiort ol bLrsiness. lill sLrch tinte tlru

Cornpany is condLrctittg Non-[3anking [f inancial activities.

(c) According to the inforrnation and explanations given to Lrs, the Clonrpany is noL a Colc

luvestnrent Cornpany ('CIC') as defirred underthe RegLrlatious macle by the Reserve [Janl< ol
lnclia. Therefbre. the provisions of ClaLrse 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the

Com panr,.

(d) Accordin-q to the infbrrnation and explanations providecl to us dLrrirrg thc ctrLtlse ol'otit atttlii.

the Group (as per the provisions of the Core lnvestment Conrpruries (ltescrve llarr!')

Directiorrs, 201 6) does not have any CIC.

xvii. The Conpany has not incurred auy caslt loss irr the current financial year hclwever, it hacl

incurued cash loss of Rs 58.658 hLrndreds in the imrnediately preceding financialyear'.

\t lil 'l'here has uot bcen an_r resignation of the Statu[oly Atrdilors clLrring tho vcitt' ancl tltclciirt'e ,

CIause 3(xviii) o1'the olcler is not applicable to tlre Conrpanl,.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates ol'r'ealisation of financial asscts

altd payntent of financial liabilities, other inforrnation accornpanying tlre l'inancial statentents

and our knowledge of the managenent and its plans and based on our examination o1' thc

evidence sLrpportingthe assumptior.ts, we believe that matcriitl urrcertaitrty exists as ott tltc tliile

of tltis aLldit report regarcling the Contpanr,'s ability to n'rcct its Iiabiiitics existirrg as rtl lltt: dutc

oI balance sheet. We tirlther state that our repr.rrlins is bascd ort tlte fiicLs Lrp to date ol'tlte iiLttlil

rep-,ort. We further draw attention to paragraplr'Material LJncertainty'in relatiotr to (ioirtu.

C'oncelrr'section o1'our independent auclitor's repot1 ot'evan date, on the firrancial stllcntcitls

olthe Conrpany. regarcling the applicability of the going conoenr assun.tptions

xtx.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Rcport
Rel'erred to in paragraph I r-rnder''Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Ilequiretnents' sectiott of our

report to the rtrerrrbers of Apex h,nterprises (lndia) Ltd. on the l--inancial statctttents folthe year etlded 3l
March. 202:1.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act ale not applicable to the Corrptrny artd herti;c, the

Colnpany is not required to spencl on projects as required under Section 135 (5) ot the Act,

Therel'ore. the provisions of Clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

['he lcporting uncler Clause 3(xxi) of the Orc]el is not applicable irt respecl o1'auclit ol'thesc

l'iinancial stateurents. Thercfore, lro conrlent irr respect of the said Clausc ltas bcctt ittclLLclccl rrt

th is report.

li.,r'D.K. Chhajer & Co.
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ANNEXUITE I} TO T'[IE INDEPENDBNT AUDIT'OI{'S IIEI'OIIT OF' B\/EN DA'TE ON I'[IIi
t-tNANCIAL STATEMENTS OF APEX trNTEILI',RlSES (lNDIA) LIMI'fEI)

lleport on the [nternal Financial Controls rvith reference to thc Financial St:rtements uuder Clatrsc

(i) ol'Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We lrave arrdited the Interual Financial Controls with ref-erence to the f-inarrcial staterttettts of' Apcx

linterprises (lndia) Limited ("the Company") as at 3l Marclr 2024 in con]Lrnction rvitlt oLu'atrclit olthe
finaltoial statepteuts o1'the Contpatty for the year endecl on that date.

Mirnagement's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's rnanzrgelrellt is responsible for establishing and ntairttaittittg ititernal financial controls

based on tfte internal control tvith rel-erence to financial staternertts criteria established by the Cotlpalrl

ognsideriltg the essential conrpouetrts of internal colttrol statecl in the Guidance Note ort ALrclit of'lntcrtlit I

Irirrancial Contr.ols over Financial Reportiltg issLred by the lrtstitute of Chal'tered Accotrtttarlts ol'Illtl iti
(tCAl). Thesc responsibilities inclLrde the design, intplenteutation aud nraintetrance of adeclLtate itllelttai

finalcial controls that were operating effectively fbr ensLrring thc orderly ancl efflcierrt condtrct of its
bLrsiless. inclucliug adherence to Company's policies, the sat-eguarding of its assets, the prevcrltiott attcl

cletectiol of fi-aLrcls apd errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoutrtit'tg records arld the tirrclr
pr.eparatiol of reliable frrrancial inforr.nation, as required underthe Companies Ac1,2013 ("'fhe Act")

Autlito r's llesponsi bility

C)trr respopsibility is to express an opinion on the Corrpany's intcrual flnancial cotttrols rvitlt ref-erettce ttl

flnancial statenrents based on our audit. We conducted our aLrdit in accordarrce with the Gttidattcc Nolc otr

ALrclit of lnter.ual F-iltancial Coltrols over Financial Reporting (the "GLridance Note") arrd the Stanciar'.15 ()rr

Ayditing, issLred by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the crtcrrL

applicable to tur aLrclit ol internal flnancial coutrols, both applicable to trn audit of internal flnarrciai

coittr.ols ancl both issLred by the ICAL "fhose Standards and tlre Guidance Note require thal we cot'ilplr'

rvith ethical recluir.erlents ancl plan aud perforur the ar.rclit to obtairr reasonable assLlrilllce aboLrL r'vhetltcl'

acleclLrate internal f-inancial contlols over llnancial reporting lvas established artcl tttztitttairlecl arlci i1'sttch

controls operatcd etl'cctivelf irl all rnatelial respects.

Our aLrclit iuvolves performing proceclures to obtain aLrdit evidence about the adcqirac,\ of [hc irltcrtla]
gpancial coptrols systent over financial systelr and their clperating effbctiveness. C)r-rr aLrdil ol irllcrtrai

financial controls over financial repolting inclLrdecl obtaining an utrdet'standilrg of internal fillallcial

coutrols ot,er financial statentents. assessing the rish that a matelial tvealit.tcss exists and testitlq arlcl

cvaluating the clcsign and operatin-u effectiveness ol lntcrnal Cotttrol lrasccl ott thc itsscssccl t-isli llii'
pr.oceclLrres selectecl clepencl on the aLrclitor's judgment. inclLrding the assessntcrtl o1'thc Iisli.s ttl'rltllteliili

rnisstatenreut of the flnanoial statelnellts, wltetlter due 1o fraud or ert'or.

We believe that the audit eviderlce \\/e lrave obtained is sufflcienl and appropriate to provide a basis [iir

our auclit opinion on the Company's internal f'lnancial coutrols system with rel'erence to these firlalre ial

stateur en ts.



Nleaning of Iutcrnal Financial Controls over Financial Rcporting

A Corrpaly's iptellal l'ilancial control over flnancial statentertts is a process desigrlecl tcl provicle

relsopable asssraloe regarding the reliability ol financial reporting and the preparatiotl o1'firratlcial

staleurepts lcrr.extelral purposes in accordance lvith generalll'acceptecl accor-ttltirrg prirrciples. A

Clor.npany's ir.'ternal fluancial oontrol over flnancial statenrents includes those policies atrd pt'occcltlt'cs

that:-

(l) pertail to the nraintenance of records that, in reasouable detail, accttrately and lairly ref'lect the

tlrlsactious and clispositions of the assets of the Conrpany; (2)providc reasonablc assr.r|zrrlce thal

trapstrctillrs are recorded as lrecessary to pernrit preparalion of llnirncial statettrents itt accordarlce r'lith

gelertrlly accepted acoounting principtes, and that receipts and expenclitures ol the C-'orrparly' are beirlg

macle only i1 accordalce with authorizations of rlanagertrent ancl directors of the Conlparll: ancl (3.;

provide reasonable assurauce regarding prevention or timely detection clf unattthot'izcd trcqLrisiticlrl, ttse. i.lr

disposition of the Company's assets that coLrld have a ntaterial eff-ect on the flllarlcial statctnerlts.

lnhercnt Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls ovcr Financial Reporting

BecaLrse ttltl,c. inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls uith rclclencc to lttlatlcial stttLcttle-trts-

inclLr6i1-s t5c possibility,of collusion or impropel nranageurenl. overt'ide of'controls. Inatcrial

nrisslatepreuts dye to erpor or fr-aud uray occur and not be detected. Also, projectiotts ol'atly evalualioll ot.

the Internal Irinancial Controls willi reference to finaucial statements 1o fltLrre periods are sub-iect t.r.l [he

risli that the Internal Firrancial Controls rvith respect to financial statetnents tray beconre inaclequa'.e

because of changes iu conclitions, or that the clegree of compliance rt,itlt the policics or proccdLrrcs llra\

clcteriorate.

Qualitictl Opinion

Accor.dilg to the infbrrnation and explauation given to us, the fbllolving tnatcrial wealiltcss ltas bcctl

ic'lenlillecl as at 3l N'Iarch. 202'1:

-l-he 
Clonrpaur,'s internal lrnancial control regarding [air valtration of ils inr'csttlcrtt as t'cclttilod [ri lrltl \>

109 "Finapcial lpstr.r.rptelts" i;r respect of unquoted eqLrity'slrares. dcbenttrles, trptiortall,v'lirlly C'orlr.cl'tiblc

ciebelture-s. pop-cLrnrulative optionally convertible preference share and cttntLrlative recleetlrable

prcf'erepce share u,ere rrot operating effectively as on 31 Marclt. 2024. u'hich r'vttLi lcl restt lt ill tlol

recognizing fair valLre gain/loss appropriately in these f-inancial statelllel.)ls o1-tlre Corlrptllly.

A .rlaterial vn,ealiuess' is a def iciency or a conrbination ol'cleficiencies in intet'nal tlitancial cotril'01 or'ct

firrancial reportirrg, such that thele is a reasonable possibility that a nraterial n'tisstatcnrertt oI a (iottlptttl,r-s

itnlr.ral or iltlcrirn llnalcial stateutelrts rvill not be prevetltecl tlt'clelectccl tlrl a titrrell blt:i:.

Ip our opit.tio,r, the Conrparry has, irr all rlatelial respects an adecluatc internal flnancial cotttt'ols s)'stclli

rvith relercuce to financial stateurents and such internal flnancial controls rvith respect to llnarlciirl

statentenls were operating eff-ectilely as at 31 March,2024, based on the internal control with t'espcct ttr

flpancial statenrepts criteria established by the Cornpan,v- corrsidering the es:;elttial cotnponettts of itlterntrl

contr.ol stalecl in the GLridance Nole on ALrdit of lnternal Irinancial C'ontrols r'rith ref'ererlce 1o Iirlatlcirll

[_-

i



Reportirrg issued by the Iustitute of chartered Accor-rntants ol lndia and except lor the possible eff'ects irl'

,raterial u,eakress clescribecl above ou the achieverrent of the ob.jectives of the cotrtrol criteria' thc

iuternal t-ipaucial control over fjnancial reporting lvith referetlce to tltese flnancial statenretlts were

operating el'fectivel) as of 3l March, 2024.

\^/e also have auclited in accordance with the Starrdard on Aucl iting issLrccl by thc ltlstitLrte o['C'harle|cd

AccoLrrtart o1- lnclia, as specified r-rnder Section 143(10) ol the Act. this f inartcial staterllerrts 01- Apc:'

llrrterpriscs (lnclia) Limite; rvhich comprise Balance sheet irs at 31 N4arch,2024. atrd the relatecl slaterlcnt

ol l)roflt and Loss ancl statentent of cash Flows fbr the year ended, and surrnrat'y of rrraterial accotrtltirts

policies anil other explanatory infbrmatiou. These material rveal<nesses rvere cot'rsidered in detertnillirlg

the nat,-rre, tirripg ani extent of audit test applied in oLrr auclit of the 3l March, 2024 financial stirtctltctrts

of Apex llnterpr.ises (lnclia) Linrited ancl the report Coes not affect our report dated 27 May. 2024 rvhioh

express a clLral ifiec1 opinion on those financial statetlrellts.

For D. K.Chhajcr& Co.

L' J t cr r I ar c tl Acc ot ut I tr tt I s

Firnr Registratiotr No. 3041 3BE

.lngannath Prasatl MohaPatro

l) urltret'

Membersh ip No. 2l 701 2

UDIN : 91 I t -+otr BK-c- B'l H Sgel

Pl:rce: l(olliata

l)rtte: l7 Mrrt. l0l-l
(}il*n.'r9



Apex Enterprises (lndial Limited

ct N - I51109W81995P1C068542
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024

amount in hundred two decimals, unless otherwise

Particulars Notes

As at
March 31, 2024

Amount

As at
March 31,2023

Amount

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Financial Assets

(i) lnvestments
(c) Deferred Tax Asset

(d) OtherNon-CurrentAssets

Current assets

(a) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables

(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents
(iii) Cash Balances (other than cash & cash equivalents)

(b)

(c)

(iv) Loans and Advances

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other current assets

Total Assets

EqUITY AND TIABITITIES

EqUITY

Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

Total Equity

UABtUTtES

Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financlal Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(b) Long-TermProvisions
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities

Current Liabilities
(a) FinancialLiabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Other Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and [iabilities

3

4

5

5

7

8

9

10

11

L2

13

t4

15

16

5

t7

18

970.24

5158855.54

6t496.t7
7632.OO

7336.24

s820L72.39

7632.00

s2249il.95

480.00

1585.49

1150.00

497203.58

47329.O9

9s.00

5829140.63

54564.77

3433.34

1150.00

s994s1.34
45473.72

g5.oo

5418tt4.15 704207,57

5770809.11 5533:t48.20

882040.00
12930348S 1 1 l

882040.00
(28996262.O2)

l28/.2t4/,9.ttl

24175860.00

3053.81

128LL4222.O21

24L75860.00

242t.00

t9724.50
24fi4923.8t

t7t440.Lt
472.43

984t421.87

24198005.50

470s29.L4

1634.13

997140t.4s
1q)133:t4.41
14192258.22

L04/956/..72
3454-7570.22

5770809.11 5533348.20

f_

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Financial Statements

L&2
3to41

The notes referred to above form an integral part ofthe financial statements

As per our Report attached of even date

For D.K.Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

lCAl Firm Registration No.304138E

Jagganath Prasad Mohapatro
Portner

(Rabi Paul)

Director

DtN - 00020755

(subrata Pal)

Director
DrN - 00016151

(Prakash Sarkar)

cFo

PAN. AZHPSO5TlL

No.217012

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors



Apex Enterprises (lndia) Limited
ctN - t51109W81995P1C068542
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2024

amount in hunrlred upto two decimals, unless otherwise

Particulars Notes

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Amount

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Amount

lncome
Other lncome

Provision for Doubt Debts written back

Gain on lnvestment due to change of FMV

Total lncome

Expenses

Loss from Partnership Firm

Share Forfit

Loss on lnvestment due to change of FMV

Loss on Permanent diminution in value of lnvestment

Employee benefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expenses

Current tax

. Tax adjustment for earlier Years

Deferred tax

Total tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive lncome

A. (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified

profit or loss

B. (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit

loss

Other Comprehensive lncome for the year

Total Comprehensive lncome for the year (V + Vl)

Basic and diluted Earnings per equity share of face

value of {10/- each (in INR)

ilt.

V.

vt.

19

20

20

2L

22

3

23

24

317385.54 76075.98

4889.65

274904.91

317385.54 355870.54

651703.65

10045.31

22347.3I

356.00

11685.87

L977L.36

46000.00

211864.9s

r0723.59

35114.75

109.16

8622.44

696148.14 332t46.25

(378762.60)

9585.16

181220.571

23724.29

(6331.27)

20893.87
(71s3s.s1) 14s62.60

(3O7227.0s) 9161.59

(307227.O91 9161.69

(3.48) 0.10

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Financial Statements

The notes referred to above form an integral part ofthe financial statements

1&2
3to41

As per our Report attached of even date

For D.K.Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

lCAl Firm Registration No.304138E

Prasad Mohapatro

No. 217012

n Behalf of the Board of Directors

(Rabi Paul)

Director

DrN - 0002075s

(Subrata Pal)

Director
DIN - 00016151

(Prakash Sarkar)

cFo
PAN . AzHPSO571L

2024



amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Amount

For the year ended

March 31,2023
Amount

B.

Cash Flow from operating Activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax for the period

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation

lnterest lncome

Dividend lncome

Gain on Sale of lnvestment

Gain on lnvestment due to change of FMV

l-oss on lnvestment due to change of FMV

Loss on Parmanent Diminution in value of lnvestment

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Doubtful Debts written back

(Profit)/Loss from Partnership Firm

Share Forfeiture

operating Profit/ (Loss) before changes in oPerating assets and liabilities

Adjustments for changes in oPerating assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(lncrease) in trade receivable

Decrease/(lncrease) in Short Term loans and advances

Decrease/(lncrease) in Other Current Assets

Decrease/(lncrease) in Current Tax Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) in other Financial Liabilities

lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Direct taxes Paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash from / (used in) operating Activities

Cash Flow from lnvestinB Activities
Ad.iustment in Defrered Tax Assets

lnterest received

Dividend received

capital Expenditure on Property, Pland & Equipments

Proceeds from disposal of Property, Pland & Equipments

Purchase of Long Term lnvestments

Proceeds from Sale of Long Term lnvestment

Net Cash from / (used in) lnvesting Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceed from Long Term Borrowing

Repayment of Long Term Borrowing

Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A + B + Cl

Cash and cash equivalents

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balance

with banks and deposits with banks.

ln Current Accounts

Other bank balances

Cheque in Hand

Cash on Hand

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2024

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the

'lndirect Method' as set out in the lndian Accounting Standard on

'statement of Cash Flows (lnd AS-7)' issued by The lnstitute of

Chartered Accountants of lndia.

c.

D

(a)

(b)

(378762.60)

366.00
(33601.51)

(807.63)

(280492.301

551703.65

642.41

23724.29

109.16

(40s33.78)

(729.r3],

(274904.gLl,

211864 95

825.50

(488e.6s)

L97t|.36
46000.00

(40es1.58)

54t44.77
702247.76

4084.03
(1161.70)

(13s979.s8)

19685.15)

(18821.2U

(54664.77)

54342.33

L33.17

(247s.27"

4.54

30521.78

28562.80

12726L.56) 17601.17

33601.61

807.63

(s.sol

290100.00

75111.5s

40s33.78
729.t3

{.729.36:,

s28.24

(4ssss.96

tt7t.97
324501.74 71789.35

99824.92
(398913.95

78603.18
(187961.01

(299089.031 (1093s7.83)

(1846.8s)

( 1846.8s)

3433 34

34.89

34.89

3398.45

1585.49 3433.34

1065 23

521.26

399.72

2000.00

1033.62

1585.49 3433.34

Notes form an of these 5tatements.The

Apex Enterprises (lndia) Limited

crN - t51109W81995Ptco58542
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3L,2024

As per our Report attached of even date

For D.K.Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

tCAl Firm Registration No. 304138E

nd on Behalf of the Board of Directors J

(subrata Pall

Director
DIN - 00016151

Director
DtN - 00020755

(Prakash Sarkar)

cFo
PAN . AZHP5O571L

t", "*

Jagganath Prasad MohaPatro

Portner
Membership No.217012

Place : Kolkata

Date:27th May,2024

^*b*-=-
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APEX ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR Trm YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2024

1. Corporate Information
Apex Enterprises (India) Limited ("the Company") is a company incorporated on 20m February 1995.
The company is engaged in the Investments in Shares & Securities. However the company is in the
process of diverting of business to Non-Financial activities. The shares of the company are listed on
Calcutta Stock Exchange.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under section 133 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other provisions of the Companies Act,2013
("the Act"). The Company prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4.

b. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an accrual
method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
vahel amortised cost. (Refer note 2.3 below).

c. Functional Currency and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also its functional
curTency.

2. SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOT]NTING POLICIES

2.1. Recognition of Interest income
Interest income for all financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
is recognised using the contractual interest rate.

2.2. Recognition of Dividend Incomes
Dividend income (including from Investments measured at FVTPL) is recognised when the

Company's right to receive the payment is established. This is established when it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

2.3 Financial Instruments
A financial insffument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial Asset and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue

of financial asset and financial liabilities (Other than financial asset and financial liabilities at fai.r

value through the statement of profit and loss) are added or deducted from the fair value of the

financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
the statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

(i) Financial Assets -

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atffibutable to the

\

;.

\*

acquisition of the financial asset.



APEX ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR Tm YEAR ENDED 3lst MARCH,2024

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Financial Asset at Amortised Cost
o Debt Instrument at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCD
o Debt Instrument at Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
. Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Equity Instruments measured at FWPL: For all equity instrument in other than held for trading, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in Profit and Loss subsequent changes in the
fair value. Equity instruments which are also held for trading are classified as FVTPL. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

In case the Company decides to classiff an equity instrument as FVTPL, then all fair value changes

on the instrument are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. Dividends on investments are

credited to profit or loss.

The company has designated its investment in equity instruments as FVTPL category.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS - 109 requires expected credit losses (ECL) to be measured

through a loss allowance. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of
Ind-AS I 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers", if they do not contain a significant
financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recogrising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. The l2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.o. all

shortfalls) discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or
during the period is recognised as income / expense in the statement of



APEX ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO TI{E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3lst MARCH,2024

loss. For financial assets measured as at amortised cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(ii) FinancialLiabilities

The Company recognises a financial liability in its balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for-trading, or it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured atfair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized
in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR (Effective Rate
Interest) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes
cash on hand, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash, cash at bank, and bank overdraft which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

2.5. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, installation or construction (net

of taxes and other recoverable, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any, except freehold land which is carried at cost

cost of properly, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including inward freight,
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

@i.ktr
to working condition and location for its intended use. Stores and spare parts are capitalised



APEX ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2024

when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. The corresponding old spares are

decapitalised on such date with consequent impact in the statement of profit & loss.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as separate asset,

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise,
expenditure towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and
depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.

2.6. Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value method (WDV)
to write down their residual values over their estimated useful life specified in Schedule II of the
Companies Act,20l3.
Depreciation is provided to allocate the costs of property, plant and equipment, net of their residual
values, over their useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act,2013.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and

equipment are reviewed during each financialyear and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In
respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognized, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

2.7 . lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment, based on internal/external factors. lf any such indication exists, then an impairment
review is undertaken and an impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and

loss wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable

amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use. . ln
case, where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual non-financial
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount for the smallest cash generating unit to
which the non-financial asset belongs.

lmpairment loss recognised in prior accounting period(s) is reversed when there is an indication

that the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. However, the carrying

value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by

charging usual depreciation, if there was no impairment. Post impairment, depreciation is

provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life

2.8. Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax and includes any adjustments
related to past periods in current and/or deferred tax adjustments that may become necessary due to
certain developments or reviews during the relevant period. Tax is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in Equity or Other
Comprehensive Income.

2.8.1 Current Tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

{*

t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31St MARCH,ZOZ4

Current tax relating to the items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is

recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations

in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right

to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability

on a net basis.

2.8.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the

deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor

taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset

realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

Balance Sheet date.

Deferred ta:r assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each

reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same

relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity, in which

case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other

Comprehensive lncome or directly in Equity respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent

there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified

period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT
credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect

that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

2.9. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and assets

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a

result of a past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle such

an obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably. If the effect of the time value of money is

*,.-, material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3lst MARCH,ZOZ4

Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements
when the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is more.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

2.10. Earnings per Share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss athibutable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

2.11. Cash-flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals ofpast or future cash

receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

2.12. USE OF ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AllD ADJUSTMENT
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year ure discussed in the
paragraphs that follow.

(, Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic factors
(such as known technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end

changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively.
qd

of each reporting date and any
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The Company also reviews its properfy, plant and equipment for possible impairment ifthere
are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the assets may

not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors

leading to significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes

in regulatory environment are taken into consideration.

(iD Contingencies and Commitments
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation

and other claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable

and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's

assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,

management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such liabilities are disclosed in

the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome ofthe legal proceedings, the

Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company's

financial position or profitability.

(iii) Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-

observable data to the extent it is available.

(iv) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Caruied Forward Tax Losses and Unused Tac

Credit
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the

probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can

be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal

or economic limits.
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pex Enterprises (India)
- L5l 109wB1995PLC068542

to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024
amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

Investment
Non-Current Investments at fair value through prolit or loss

Other Body Corporate - Fully paid-up Equity Shares

Face Value As at March 31 2024 As at March 31 2023

share No, ofShares Amount No. ofShares Amount

Ouoted Eouitv Instruments
Agrotech India Ltd.

AKC Steel lndustries Ltd.

Alcobex Metals

Ashram Online Com Ltd.

Bhakra Industries Ltd.

BIL lndustries Ltd.

B M Holding Ltd
(Formerly - Arihant Tournesol Ltd.)

Burlington Finance Ltd.

Cauvery Software Engg. System Ltd.

Celeste lntemational Ltd.

Chand Vanaspati Ltd.

Coimbatore Lakshmi Inv. & Fin. Co. Ltd

CT Cofton Yam Ltd.

Dalta lntemational Ltd.

Dharnendra Agro lndustries Ltd
Dunlop India Ltd.

Electricals & Electronics (India) Ltd
Fidelity Finance Ltd.

Flower & Tissu India Ltd.

Garlon Polyfab lndustries Ltd.

Global Finance Corporation Ltd.

Globe Stock Securities Ltd.

GPI Textiles Ltd
Gujarat Concost Ltd.

Himachal Futuristic Commu. Ltd.

IGGI Resorts International Ltd.

lndian Seamless Finance Ltd.

lndo American Cements Ltd.

Inter Globe Finance Ltd.

Jai Agro Industries Ltd.

Jauss Polymers Ltd.

JMDE Packaging & Realtie

Kareems Spun Silk Ltd.

Karma lndustries Ltd
Kings Intemational Aqua-Marine Exp Ltd.

Kiran Overseas Exports Ltd

Kirti Seeds Biotech Ltd.

KJMC Corporate Advisors (India) Ltd

KJMC Financial Services Ltd.

Lunar Diamond lndustries Ltd.

Maruti Plastic Ltd.

Modern Cements Ltd.

MS Shoes (East) Ltd.

Navcom lndustries Ltd.

Nextgen Animation Technologies Ltd

Noel Agrotech Ltd.

Orkay lndustries Ltd.

Padmini Technologies Ltd.

Pooja Granites Ltd.

Procol Electronics Ltd.

Savoy Herbals Ltd.

Secure Earth Technologies Ltd
Silverline Technologies Ltd.Ltd.

SlM-Maneklal Industries Ltd.

Solarsons lndusfies Ltd.

l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
t0

l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
10

10

l0
10

l0
10

5

l0
I

10

10

l0
l0
t0
l0
I

l0
10

l0
l0
t0
l0
l0
10

l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
10

l0
10

t0
10

10

l0
l0
l0
l0

100

500

2000

7700
I 100

400

600

236000

300

5500

89100

I 500

100

200

1000

s900
75000

200

900

2100

600

29000

399

700

400000

4100

100

1200
160

12100

1739

209000
200

25 10

4200

1500

37400
49985

50000
200

s300

400

100

15000

2

24000
50

136400

500

1200

1800

1000

6

lll
3000

462.00

1080.00

367600.00

84.54

89.04

24492.65

24540.00

100

500

2000

7700

l 100

400

600

236000

300

5500

89100

I 500

100

200
1000

s900

7s000

200
900

2100

600

29000

399

700

400000

4100

100

r200

160

12100

t739
209000

200

25 l0
4200

I 500

37400

49985

50000

200

5300

400

100

I 5000

2

24000
50

136400

500

1200

I 800

1000

6

ll1
3000

219.45

922406.00

3s.62

67.82

6.96



Limited
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Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024
amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

Face Value As at Msrch 31,2024 As at March 3 2023
share No. ofShares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Sreechem Rasins Ltd.

State Bank oflndia
Surya Agro Oils Ltd.

Swarnima Oils Industries Ltd.

Swastik Nitro lndustries Ltd.

Top Telemedia Ltd.

U.P. Minerals Ltd.

Uniworth International Ltd.

Vishwakarma Cement Works Ltd.

Wool Combers (I) Ltd.

(ii) Unquoted Equitv Instruments
Amrit Sales Promotion Pvt Ltd - 'A"
Authentic Finance Prt Ltd - A
Authentic Finance Pvt Ltd - B
Decent Financial Services Pvt Ltd

Dilip Chhabria Design (Automobile)

Enso Technologies Plt Ltd

Exim Scrips Dealers Pvt. Ltd.

Exim Scrips Services Pvt. Ltd.

Flat Earth Oil & Gas Pvt Ltd
HFCL Kongsung Telecom Ltd.

I{FCL Satellite Communications Ltd.

Igloo Commerce Pvt Ltd
Keventer Projects Ltd
Linear Commercial Prt Ltd
Manimudra Vincom Pvt Ltd
Platinum Edu Ltd

Pragya Vincom Pvt Ltd
Radice Steels & Alloys Ltd.

Richirich Securities Pvt Ltd.-A
Richirich Securities Pvt. Ltd.-B
Right Innuva Know-How Ltd

Santhal Multicust Pvt Ltd
Speedcrafts Ltd
Teamasia Semiconductors Pvt Ltd
Technet Software Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Vaibhav Credit & Portfolio Pvt Ltd
Westel Wireless Ltd.

(iii) Mutual Fund

Axis Arbitrage Fund - Regular IDCW
Kotak Low Duration Fund

(iv) Debentures (at Cost)

Mardia Chemicals Ltd.

{v) Ootional Fullv Convertible Debenture

Preksha Tradecom Pr4 Ltd

Yuthika Trading Company Pr.t Ltd

10

10

10

10

10

10

l0
l0
10

l0

l0
l0

100

l0
l0
10

10

l0
10

10

l0
10

10

10

l0
l0
l0
l0
I

10

l0
10

l0
l0
l0
l0
10

800

27000

200

I 700

5000

2500

500

4000

4000

1400

1 128

7

100

300000

285000
22400

44750

13000

20600
100000

108000

750000

5903400

130000

5000

6390000

377000
16000

100000

695237

800000

254000
45000

40000
25000

622118.55

10918.70

53899.90

67s43.20

561.36

203202.00
800

27000

200

1700

5000

2500

500

4000
4000

1400

29000
300000
285000

22400

44750
13000

20600

100000

108000

750000

5903400

130000

5000

6390000

377000

16000

100000

69s237

800000

254000

335000

40000
25000

900000

75000

170000

80700

1077

7

100

332.88

141399.00

1335007.54

9607.70

t092t.30
50296.96

67s10.80

623664.00

l3s6l 82.10

17120.00

54432.20

1807 r .00

2207806.06

114.78

188.72

55.29

55.29

700000.00

713000.00

14r3000.00

400000.00

665 199.00

1369075.50

17280.00

54762.40

7s000
170000 20689.00

80700

2259367.10

123.30

20t.70
325.00

55,29

55.29

700000 700000.00

713000 713000.00

1413000.00

400000.00

700000

713000

8000

400000.00(d
s)g
/ue,



Enterprises (India)
L51 109WB1995PLC068542

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

Face Value

3.67o OCR Cumulafive Redeemable Preference Share

Bluetown Trading Company Pvt Ltd
Fastdeal Mercantile Company Pvt Ltd

As at March 31 As at March 3 2023

share No. ofShares Amount No. of Shares Amount
2024

(vii)
466000 233000.00
462000 231000.00

464000.00

GrandTotal(i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi+vii) 5f58866.54

466000
462000

233000.00
231000.00

5820172.39

1335311.04

4484861.35

5820172.39

Value of Quoted
Value of Unquoted

Total

622443.55
4536422.99

5r58E66.54

a) In the absence offair valuation report, the company has not carried out investments at its fair value as required by Ind AS 109 "Financial lnstrument"

following included in items at fair value through proht or loss :

Mat31,2024 Mar 31. 2023

Equity lnstruments 22,59,36; 22,07,80,606
5,529

14,13,00,000

4,00,00,000

(at Cost) 5,529
14,13,00,000

4,00,00,000
Fully Convertible Debenture

Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Share

6% OCR Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share

b) In the Schedule of Quoted Investment, the company is holdng2700 equity shares of State Bank of India since 1995. On reduction in face value per

from Rs.l0/- to Re.l/- per share, the quantity have been increased to 27,000. In the year 1996, the company had filed a money suit (No.3176 of 1996

against State Bank of India for misplacement of those 2700 shares.Recently on 0910612022 the Ld. Judge II-nd Bench, City Civil Court, Kolkata

been pleased to pass a decree order directing the State Bank oflndia (defendent no.l) and Share Transfer Agent (defendent no.2) to issue the

share Certificate in favour ofthe company alongwith all benefits whatsoever and execution of decree is under process.

c) Due to the unavailability of trade data, suspension of trading in stock exchange and non-availability of other information regarding the current share

the company has decided to value the following quoted equity shares at ZERO each.

Agrotech lndia Ltd.

AKC Steel lndustries Ltd.

Alcobex Metals

Bhakra lndustries Ltd.

BIL lndustries Ltd.

Burlington Finance Ltd.

Cauvery Software Engg. System Ltd.

Celeste lnternational Ltd.

Chand Vanaspati Ltd.

Coimbatore Lakshmi lnv. & Fin. Co. Ltd.

CT Cotton Yarn Ltd.

Dalta lnternational Ltd.

Dharnendra Agro lndustries Ltd.

Dunlop lndia Ltd.

Electricals & Electronics (lndia) Ltd

Fidelity Finance Ltd.

Flower & Tissu lndia Ltd.

Garlon Polyfab lndustries Ltd.

Global Finance Corporation Ltd.

Globe Stock Securities Ltd.

GPlTextiles Ltd

Gujarat Concost Ltd.

lGGl Resorts lnternational Ltd.

lndian Seamless Finance Ltd.

lndo American Cements Ltd.

Jai Agro lndustries Ltd.

JMDE

100

500

2000

1100

400

235000

300

5500

89100

1500

100

200

1000

5900
75000

200

900

2100

600

29000

399

700

4100

100

1200

12100

209000

As at March 3L,2O24

& Realtie
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Apex Enterprises (tndia) Limited
cIN - L51 109WB1995PLC068542
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

R amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

Kareems Spun Silk Ltd.

Karma lndustries Ltd

Kings lnternational Aqua-Marine Exp. Ltd.

Kiran Overseas Exports Ltd.

Kirti Seeds Biotech Ltd.

Lunar Diamond lndustries Ltd.

Maruti Plastic Ltd.

Modern Cements Ltd.

MS Shoes (East) Ltd.

Navcom lndustries Ltd.

Nextgen Animation Technologies Ltd

Noel Agrotech Ltd.

Orkay lndustries Ltd.

Padmini Technologies Ltd.

Pooja Granites Ltd.

Savoy Herbals Ltd.

Secure Earth Technologies Ltd

Silverline Technologies Ltd.Ltd.

SLM-Maneklal lndustries Ltd.

Solarsons lndustries Ltd.

Surya Agro Oils Ltd.

Swarnima Oils lndustries Ltd.

Swastik Nitro lndustries Ltd.

Top Telemedia Ltd.

U.P. Minerals Ltd.

Uniworth lnternational Ltd.

Vishwakarma Cement Works Ltd.

Wool Combers (l) Ltd.

Total

Deferred Tax Assets

- Property, Plant & Equipment
- On Fair value Gain of investment (FVTPL)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
- Property, Plant & Equipment

- On Fair value Gain of investment (FVTPL)

200
2510

4200
1500

37400

200

5300

400

100

15000

2

24000
50

136400

500

1800

1000

5

LLL

3000

200

1700

5000
2500

500

4000

4000

1400

50
136400

500

1800

L

Total

Net DTA/(L)

Total

As at
March 31,2024

82.27

61417.23

61499.50

3.33

6L496.11

As at
March 31,2024

7632.00

As at
March 3l 2024

165
165333

As at
March 3 2023

51.35

19774

As at
March 31,2023

7632.00

1632.00

As at
March 31,2023

54664.77

54664.77

Other Non-Current Assets

Security Deposit

7 Trade Receivables
(a) Considered Good-Unsecured

Less : lmpairment loss allowances

(b) Considered Doubtflrl-Unsecured

Less : Provision for Allowance

{AJa-N.

7632.00

:;-
Iui
\ AC:

480.00

480.00

TOTAL (a + b) 4E0.00

are due from directors or other officers ofthe Company either severally orjointly with any

from any Firm or Private Company in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

54664.77
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Cash and Cash Equivalents (As certified by the management)

Balances with Banks

ln Current Accounts

Cheques in hand

Cash on Hand

As at
March 31,2024

106s.23

521.26

1586.49

As at
March 31,2024

I 150.00

496323.58

496323.58

496323.58

180650.40

180650.40

1806s0.40

880.00
497203.58

6934.13

4004.20

30390.76

As at
March 2023

399.72

2000.00
1033.62

As at
March 3 2023

599171.34

s99171.34

180650.40

280.00

6925.9r

8096.4s

30390.76

Total

Cash Balances (other than cash & cash equivalents)

Cash in hand (seized by I.T.Departrnent.)

10

I 150.00

I 150.00 1150.00

The Income Tax departnent carried out search & seizure in the premises ofthe Company on 2110812017 and sized cash oft13,40,000/- which

cash of tI,15,000/- which were in Company's hand on the said date.

The said cash have been added to the total income of Mr. P.L.Maloo for A.Y. 2018-19 based on allegation that the cash found was undisclosed cash

Mr. P.L.Maloo. The matter is still pending before CIT(A) and on disposal, the same will be received by the Company.

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 3 2023

Loans and Advances

Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

- to Body corporates

- to others

(lncluding interest accrued of INR 90,42,71l, P/Y INR 73,67,487)

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)

- to Body corporates

- to others

Less : Allowance for doubtfril loans

Advances
(Jnsecured, considered good)

- to odrers

(Jnsecured, considered doubtful)

- to others

Less : Allowance for doubtful loans

Advance to Staff against Salary
s994s1.34

Neither any Loans and Advances are due from directors or other officers ofthe Company either severally orjointly with any other person nor any

and advances are due from firm or Private Company in which any director is a parmer, a director, or a member. [Receivable from Related party

(P/y - Nil)l

As at As at
March 31,2023March 3l 2024

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision)

Balances with Statutorv Authorities

Income Tax Refundable

Disputed Income Tax Paid

Total

Total 41329.09 45413.t2

180650.40

L
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12 Other Current Assets

Advance to Staffagainst ExPenses
Total

Total

Total

As at
Msrch 3 2024

95.00

As at
March 31 2024

940000.00

882040.00

As at
March 2023

95.00

As at
March 31,2023

940000.00

940000.00

882040.00

882040.00

,

As at
March 31,2023

No. ofshares Yo

727401 8.2s

651941 7.39

5s3820 6.28

548524 6.22

455518 5.16

95.00

13 Share Capital
a)@

94,00,000 Equity Shares ofRs.10/- each

b) Issued. Subscribed and fullv paid-up Shares:

88,20,400 Equity Shares ofRs. l0/- each flrlly paid up

c) Equity Share Capital

1) Current Reporting Period

2) Previous Reporting Period

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 57o shares along with number of shsres held:

As at
March 31,2024

Name ofShareholders No. ofshares Vo

Baldev Commercial Pvt Ltd

Toplight Vinimay Pvt Ltd
Kalyan Vyapaar Pvt Ltd

Sharkar Sales promotion Pvt Ltd

Yashodham Merchants Prt Ltd

c) Share held by promoters at the end of the year

As at March 31,2024

1933162

548524
4555 I 8

2t'.g2

6.22

5. l6

Balance at the
beginning of the
current reporting

period
(as at March 31.,2023l

Changes in Equity Share

Capital due to prior
period errors

Reastated balance at the
beginning of the current

reDortins oeriod

Changes in Equity
Share Capital during

the current year

Balance at the end of
the current reporting

period
(as at March 37,20241

882040.00 882040.OO 882040.OO

Balance at the
beginning of the
current rePorting

period
(as at March 3L,20221

Changes in Equity Share

Capital due to prior
period errors

Reastated balance at the
beginning of the current

renoftine oeriod

Changes in Equity
Share Capital during

the current year

Balance atthe end of
the current reporting

period
(as at March 3L,20231

882040.m 882@0.00 882040.00

Baldev Commercial Pvt Ltd

Toplight Vinimay Pvt Ltd

Kalyan Vyapaar Pw Ltd

Shankar Sales promotion PW Ltd

Yashodham Merchants Pw Ltd

Vinsan Brothers Pw Ltd

Burlington Finance Ltd

Is



As at March 31,2023

Promoter Name

Opening

Share

Change

during the
vear Closing % of total shares

% of change

during the year

Baldev Commercial Pvt Ltd

Toplight Vinimay Pvt Ltd

Kalyan Vyapaar Pvt Ltd

Shankar Sales promotion Pw Ltd

Yashodham Merchants Pw Ltd

Vinsan Brothers Pvt Ltd

Burlington Finance Ltd

Amrit Sales Promotion Pw Ltd

72740t
651941

553820

548524
455518

389s15
201450

35175

72740t
551941

553820

548524
455518
389515

201450

35175

8.25

7.39

6.28

6.22

5.16

4.42

2.28

0.39

Limited
cIN - L5l 109WB1995PLC068542
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

I) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding is set out below:

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the period

Outstanding at the end of the period

g) Terms/rights attached to each class ofshares
Equity Shares:
The company has only one class ofequity shares having a par value of(10/- each. Each holder ofequity share is entitled to one vote per shares. The

company has not alloted any fully paid-up equity share by way of conversion, Bonus or rights nor has bought back any equity shares during the year.

The holders ofthe equity shares ofthe company will be entitled to receive remaining assets ofthe company, after distribution ofall preferential amounts

in the event of liquidation of the company. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.remaining assets ofthe company, after distribution ofall preferential amounts. The disfibution will be in
proportion to the number ofequity shares held by the shareholders.

As at As at
March 31 2024 March 2023

OTHER EQUITY
A. Retained Earnings

Opening Balance

Add : Profit /(Loss) during the year

B. Other comprehensive Income

Opening Balance

Change in FV during the year

Tota!

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for movement in balances of Reserves.

(28996262.02)

(29303489. l l)

As at As at
March 3 2024 March

15 Borrowings
Unsecured

(i) Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCD)

24r75860.00 2417s860.00

15.1 Terms:

{241758.60 (P.Y. 241758.60) Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCD) of t100/- each fully paid-up, redeemable at par at the end of 8

(extended thrice for a further period of5 year) from the date ofallotment or convertible at the option ofthe holder into Equity Shares at par (10

Share oftl0/- each) after one year from the date ofallotrnent. lnterest @ 0%o shall be paid on OFCD during fnst 2 years and thereafter @12%p.a.
fthe conversion option from the date ofsurrender ofthe option.)

As at
March 31,2024
No. of Shares

8820400

24175860,00

8820400

As at
March 31,2023
No. of Shares

8820400

Q900s423.7r
9t61.69

(28996262.

24t75860.00

8820400

t4

2023

Total

: 0lll0/2003 & Date of Maturity (After further extended period) : 30109/2026
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As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

16 Long term Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefit - Gratuity 3063.81

3063.81

As at
March3l,2024

171440.11

t7t440.tt

242r.00
2421.00

As at
March 31,2023

Total

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

- Loans from Bodies Corporate

- Including interest accrued of INR 23,74,01 1, P/Y INR 31,52,914

- Interest rate on loans repayble on demand varies from 6.5o/. - 7%, p.a.

Other Financial Liabilities

- Trade / Security deposits received

- Liability for expenses

Total
470529.14

470529.14

60.00

412.43

472.43

As at
l[larch31,2024

60.00

1574.13

1634.13

As at
March 31,2023

l8 Other Current Liabilities
Payable against purchase of shares

Statutory Liabilities

Other Liabilities
Temporary Book overdraft from schedule bank

2113.49
9839308.38

30000.00

3545.66

9942308.38

1547.41

997740t.45Total 9841421.87

Other liabilities payable to M/s Authentic Finance Pvt Ltd represents amount pertaining to the scheme of amalgamation which was approved by

Hon'ble Calcutta High Court Order dated 17108/2005 w e f 01104/2004. The Company is making all effort to make the repayment of liability.

For the
year ended

March 31,2024

For the
year ended

March 31,2023

l9 Other Income

Interest

Dividend Income

- on Shares

- on Mutual Fund

Interest on Income Tax Refund

Gain on Sale of Investment

Computer Accounting Fees

Rent

Telephone Charges

Electricity Charges

33601 61

802 13

5.50

280492.30

120.00

1980.00

204.00

180.00

317185.54

For the
year ended

March 3I,202,1

40533.78

723.37

5.7 6

32275.07

174.00

1980.00

204 00

180 00

Total 7607s.98

For the
year ended

March 31,2023

20 Gain/(Loss) on Investment due to change of FMV
Unrealised Gain/(Loss) 274904.91

274904.91Total

(6s l 703.6s)

Total
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Employee benefits expense

Salaries and Bonus

Gratuity
Staff Welfare

For the
year ended

March 31,2024

9196.1l
642.81

206.39
1004s.31

For the
year ended

March 31,2024

2036t.02
1324.84

661.4s

For the
year ended

March 31, 2024

For the

year ended

March 31,2023

9726.01

826.50

171.08

10723.59

For the
year ended

March 31,2023

351 14.65

0. l0

351 14.75

For the
year ended

March 31,2023

3526.27

l5 1.84

1963.10

747.23

23.60

147.20

600.00

1315.70

147.50

8622.44

9161,69

8820400

8820400

8820400

l0
0.10

8820400

0.10

23

Finance costs

lnterest Expenses

Interet to Others

lnterest to lncome Tax

Other expenses

Rent

Telephone Expenses

Electricity Expenses

Rates and Taxes

Demate Charges

Professional Charges

Director Fees

Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors Remuneration:

Statutory Audit Fees

24 Earnings / (loss) per equity share

(II) Basic

a. Profit after ta-x

b. (i) Number of Equity Shares at the begiming of the year

(ii) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year

(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares

outstanding during the Year
(iv) Face Value of each Equity Share (in INR)

c. Basic Earning per Share [a / (b(iii)] (in INR)

(II) Diluted
a. Dilutive potential Equity Shares

b. Weighted Average number of Equity Shares for

computing Dilutive eaming per Share

c. Diluted Eaming / (Loss) per Share [same as (I)(c) above] (in INR)

Total

Tota!

Total

3526.27
145.99

1922.40

124t.49
29.54

1327.00

480.00
2865.68

147.50

116Es.87

For the
year ended

March 31,2024

(307227.09)

8820400

8820400
8820400

l0
(3.48)

8820400

(3.48)

For the
year ended

2023
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25 Financiallnstrumentsdisclosure

(B) Fair Values

Class wise fair value of the s financial instruments

Particulars

As at
31st March,2024

As at
3lst March, 2023

Non Current Investments, other than investment in

subsidiary and joint venture (quoted)

Non Current lnvestments, other than investment in

subsidiary and ioint venture (unquoted)

622443.55

4536422.99

13353 I l.04

4484861.35

(C) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy ofthe Company's financial assets and liabilities. The different levels have

been defined below:

- Level l: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or

indirectly (i.e., derived fiom prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobsewable inputs)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Non-Current and Current Loans

Total financial assets measured at amortised cost

Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

'ota! Financial Assets measured at Fair Value

'otal Iinancial liabilities measured at amortised cost

24175860.00
1634.13

24177494.13

at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

'otal Iinancial liabilities measured at Fair Value

rgri

,; l*r '*

ured at Amortised Cost

receivables 7 480.00 54664.77

Profit or Loss 5158866.54 5820172.39

Prolit or Loss
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f,'air value measurement

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy for assets as at 3lst March 2024:
A. Financial assets:

Assets measured st fair value:
Non Current Investments, other than investrnent in
subsidiary and joint venture (quoted) 3lst March 2024 622443.55

Non Current Investments, other than investment in
subsidiary and joint venture (unquoted) 3lst March 2024 4536422.99

B. Financial liabilities:

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement

hierarchy for assets as at 3lst March 2023:

A, Financial assets:

Assets measured at fair value:

Non Current lnvestments, other than investment in
subsidiary and joint venture (quoted) 3l st March 2023 133531 1.04

Non Current Investments, other than investment in
subsidiary and joint venture 3lst March 2023 4484861.35

B. Financial liabilities:

Fair Value Technique
The fair values of the fu:ancial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

liability in an orderly transaction behveen participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to

the fair values:

(a) The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, current frrancial liabilities and bonowings approximate thei

carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The board considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets

financial liabilities recognised at cosVamortised costs in the financial statements approximates their fair values.

(b) Investments in quoted equity shares are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.

(c) Fair Value for valuation of unquoted equity instruments is arrived based on Break up value by the management.

Date of
Particulars valuation

a
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26 Financial Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings in domestic crnrency, capital creditors and hade and other payables. The main

purpose ofthese fmancial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and

other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, invesfinents at cost/fair value and deposits, that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these

risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Market risk
Market risk means that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The goal

of market risk management is optimization of profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits. Market risk comprises

two O?es ofrisk: 'Foreign currency risk', 'Interest rate risk', and 'Price risk on traded goods'.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The company undertakes no transactions denominated primarily in USD and consequently exposed to exchange rate fluctuations.

The Company h.rs no exposure to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the changes in

foreign exchange rates.

(b) Interest rate risk
The Company has no exposure to interest rate risk by adjusting of bonowing structue ratio between borrowings at fxed interest rates. The

compa.ny monitors interest rate risks regularly in order to avoid exposure to interest rate risk on borrowings at variable interest rate.

B. Credit risks

Credit risk is t}e risk of hnancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and others. In addition, credit risk arises from financial

guarantees.

The Company implements a credit risk management policy under which the Company only transacts business with counterparties that have a

certain level of credit worthiness based on internal assessment of ttre parties, hnancial condition, historical experience, and other factors. The

Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer The Company has established a credit

policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that rolates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss

component that are expected to occur. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar

financial assets. Debt securities are analyzed individually, and an expected loss shall be directly deducted from debt securities.

(i) Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Group's maximum exposue to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk as of 3l
March2024,3l Much2023 are as follows:

Particulars
As at

3lst March,2024
As at

3lst March,2023

Irade receivables (net)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Non-Current and Current Loans

1s86.49

497203.58

3433.34

599451.34

(ii) Impairment losses on financial assets

Refer the table below for reconciliation ofloss allowance in ofTrade Receivables:

Loss allowance at the beginning of the year

Add: Loss Allowance provided during the year

Less: Loss Allowance reversed during the year

at the end ofthe;
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The ageing of trade accounts and notes receivable as of 3l March 2024 and 3l March2023 are as follows:are as

Particulars
As at

31st March,2024
As at

3lst March,2023
Within Credit Period
I to 90 days past due

91 to 180 days past due

More than 180 days past due

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period.

Liquidify Risk
The Company's objective is to at all times maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirement at all times. The need of
the funds of the company are being met by internal accrual and borrowings. The short and medium term requirements are met through the
committed lines of credit.

The table provides undiscounted cash flow towards non-derivative financial liability and net settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturities based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to contractual maturity date.

Particulars 0 - 180 davs 181 - 365 davs
Payable in more

than 1 year Total
{s at 31st March 2024

Non Current borrowings

Surrent borrowings
Irade Payables

f,ther financial liabilities

60885.03

472.43

24286415.08 24347300.11

472.43

6t357.46 242E64ts.08 24347712.54

Particulars 0 - 180 davs 181 - 365 davs
Payable in more

than 1 vear Total
As at 3lst March 2023

Non Current borrowings

Current borrowings
Trade Payables

Other financial liabilities

9 I 038.57

r634.13

488848.40 24t7s860.00 247s5746,97

1634.t3
92672.70 4EE848.40 2417s860.00 24757381.10

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Risk management
The fundamental goal of capital management are to: - safeguard thetr ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and - maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ofcapital.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent
management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and intemational financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business.

For the purpose ofcompany's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all o$rer equity reserves. The company manages its capital
structure in light ofchanges in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirements ofthe financial covenants.

The Company manages its capital on the basis ofnet debt to equity ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt are long-term and

short-term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

27
A.

9:Eqd
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The table summerises the of the

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
3lst March 2023

Total borrowings

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net Debt

Equity

Total Capital (Equity + Net Debt)

Net Debt to Equity ratio

24175860.00
1586.49

24174273.51

(28421449.11)

(4247175.60)

24646389.14

3433.34

246429ss.80

(28114222.02)

(3464399.s4)

Apex Enterprises (India) Limited
- L51109W81995PLC068542

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 3l'2024
amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

28 Related Party Disclosure persuant to Ind AS 24

28.1 Related Parties Name of the Related Parties

1.Key Management Personel Rabi Paul @irector)
Subrata Pal @irector)
Birendra Pandey @irector)
Ujj al Chakraborty @irector)

Additional related parties as per Companies Act,20l3 with whom transaction has taken place during the year

Kev Manasement personnel Relationshio

Neelam Khator Company Secretary

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31 March, 2024 snd balances outstanding as at 3l March' 2024:

28.2 Transactions during the year

Particulars
Key Management Personel

Firm in which companv is a oartner.

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Directors'Fees
Subrata Pal

Rabi Paul

Birendra Pandey

Ujjal Chakraborty

Managerial Remuneration
Neelam Khator

Share of Profit and (loss)

Classic Services

150.00

150.00

150.00

30.00

1800.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

10s0.00

197t1.36

transactions of28.3 Disclosure in respect oftransactions in excess of 107o ofthe total related the ssme

Particulars Transaction with Entities in which
KMP/Relatives of KMP can exercise

significant influence
Balances

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Directors'Fees
Subrata Pal

Rabi Paul

Birendra Pandey

Uiial Chakrabortv

150.00

150.00

150.00

50.00

50.00

50.00

50.00
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29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
liabilities not provided for in respect of:

lncome tax matters Appeals by the Company 20499.00 20499.00

30

(i) The Company is of the opinion that the above demands are not tenable and expects to succeed in its appeals/defense.

(ii) Details of demand as raised by the lncome tax department are as follows:

s. nb. fbme of statute lSture of
Drres

As9€ssment Amount Under sectbn Forum wtrere pending

1 krcome Tax Act1961 hcome Tax 2012-73 20499.00 t47 NFAC, Delhi

Against the above demand of Rs.20,49,900/- for A.Y. 2012-13, the lncome Tax departnent have adjusted the companies LT.Refund of
Rs.30,39,076/- including interest r:./s 220(2) of I.T .Act.

(b) Capital and other commitments:
The Company doesn't have any Capital and other Commitments which need to be disclosed to the extent which has not been provided for.

MSME DISCLOSURE

The Company has no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises covered under the [MSMED Act, 2006] as at 3lst March2024 and 3lst March 2023.

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development Act, 2006 and has been dotermined to

the extent such parties have been identifed on the basis of information available with the Company.

As the Company's business activity falls within and is organised as a single business segment. The disclosure requirment of AS-17 on "Segment

Reporting" is not applicable.

ln the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets and non current investments, have a realisable value in the ordinary course of
business which is not different from the amount at which it is stated.

Balances ofsome ofthe sundry debtors, creditors, loans and advances are subject to confirmations from the respective parties and consequential

adjustments arising from reconciliation, ifany is not ascertainable.

OFCD Shown under the head "Long Term Borrowings" is due to amalgamation of various companies which had issued the said OFCD's on

private placement basis.

year figures are reclassified where considered necessary to conform to this year's classification.

3l

32

33

34

J5

Disclosure in ofloans & advances as per Clause 32 of

Particulars Closins Maximum Balarce

i) Loans and advances in the nature ofloans to subsidiaries Nit N,A

ii) Loans and advances in the natue ofLoans to associates Nil NA

iii) Loans and advances in the nature ofloans where there is :-

a) No repayment schedule ofrepaymentBeyond 7 years

b) No interest or interest below section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

Nil N.A

Nil Nil

iv) Loans and advances in the nature ofloans ofhrms / companies in

which directors are interested Nil NA

v) Investment by loanee in the shares ofparent company and subsidiary

company when the company has made a loan or advance in the nature ofloan Nil N.A

H

r/D
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Apex Enterprises (India) Limited
cIN - Lsl 109W81995PLC068542
Notes to financial statements as at snd for the year ended March 31,2024

R amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

Note l- Variance in Debt service coverage ratio is due to increase in fair market value oflnvestments during the
yeor.

Note 2- Variance in Return on equity ratio is due to increase in Fair market value in Investments during the year.

Note 3- Variance in Return on capital employed ratio is due to increase in Fair market value in Investments during the
year.

Note 4- Variance in Return on lnvestments ratio is due to increase in Fair marketvalue in lnvestments during the year

Going Concern

The Net Worth of the Company is negative due to losses and the company's current liabilities exceeds its current assets as at 3110312024.

However having regard to the financial support from management, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and that

no adjustment are required to the carrying value ofassets and liabilities. Further, the management is trying for re-structuring and/or merger.

The company was originally registered as NBFC. Thereafter, due to negative Net Worth it had received several reminders fiom Reserve Bank of
lndia to achieve Net Own Fund at the required level. But due to losses, it could not aftain the positive Net Own Fund at the required level. As

such the NBFC Certificate had been surrendered in the year 2006. As on date ofsurrender the company was having loans/Advances, Investment

in Shares and Securities for huge amount ln-spite of best efforts it could not get the prospective buyer for the un-quoted securities. Due to

negative net worth it could neither raise fund by infusion of fresh capital nor could take a steps for diverson business. However, the management

is in the process for exploring the scope for diversification and is hopeful for the positive outcome in the near future. Further, the management is

trying for re-structuring and/or merger

The Company is listed in the Calcutta Stock Exchange. Since, Calcutta Stock Exchange was not operating, During the year The Calcutta Stock

exchange is in operative mode and Company have been complied the all requhed formalities as prescribed by regulation 33 of Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,20l5.

(i) Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders as at March 3 l, 2024.

with Struck off Companies
of Companies Act,has no transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or

its37

38

39

40

4t

Ratio and

Ratio Numerator Denominator
Year ended

March 31.2024
Period ended

March 31.2023
7o Variance

a) Current Ratio (in times)
Iotal current
assets

Total current
liabilities

005 0.07 (1e.70)

b) Debt-Equity ratio (in times)
Debt consist of
borrowine

Total equity (0.85) (0.86 (r.08)

c) Debt service coverage ratio
(in times)

Earning for debt

seruce
Debt service (15.e3) 0. l0 (16,722.28)

d) Retum on equity ratio (in %o)
Net Profit after
Iax

Average total
eouitv

001 (0.00) (3,43s.71

e) lnventory tumover ratio
(in times)

Cost of goods sold

or sales
Average Inventory

f) Trade receivables turnover ratio
(in times)

Net credit sales
Average accounts

receivables

g) Trade payables tumover ratio
(in times)

Net credit
ourchases

Average accounts
payable

h) Net capital turnover ratio
(in times)

Revenue from
roerations

Average Working
caoital

i) Net profit ratio (in %o)
Net Profit after
Iax

Revenue from
operatrons

i) Return on capital employed
(in%)

profit before tax
md finance costs

Capital employed 008 (0 0r (661.91

k) Retum on lnvestrnents (in %)
Income generated

from invested

funds

Average invested

funds
000 001 (e8.65)
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Jagganath Prasad MohaPatro
Partner

Membership No. 217012

Place : Kolkata
Date : 27th May,2024

(Subrata Pal)

Director
DrN - 00016151

(Prakash Sarkar)
CFO
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(iii)

(iv)

Enterprises (India) Limited
- Lsl109wB1995PLC06E542

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

There are no charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies @estriction on

number oflayers) Rules, 2017.

Compliance with apProved Scheme(s) of Arrangements

During the year no Scheme of Arrangements have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies

Act, 2013, thus the disclosure of such Scheme ofArrangements is not applicable for the company.

Utilisation of Borrowod funds and share premium

A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested flmds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind offunds) to

any other persons or entities, including foreign entities(lntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the

Intermediary shall

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe compary

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) Crypto currency and Viftual Currency

The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the hnancial year.

(viii) Details of Benami Property Held

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition ofBenami Property

Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder as at March 3 l, 2023

(ix) Undisclosedlncome
There are no transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year

in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions ofthe lncome Tax Act, 1961)

(v)

(vD

(Rabi Paul)

Director

DrN - 0002075s


